# State of Connecticut



# Notary Public Manual

Denise W. Merrill Secretary of the State

Prepared by Office of the Secretary of the State

**Revised September 2013** 

# Preface

There are many reasons why someone would seek to be a notary public. You might be the owner of a small business; you may work in an office where clients and customers have frequent need of a notary's services; you may enjoy the official nature of the duties; or it may be a requirement of your job.

No matter what the reason, appointment as a notary public is a serious undertaking. The notary is a "public official," a person given a public trust, a person whose duties and responsibilities cannot be taken lightly. The notary serves a vital role in the execution of a wide range of documents. Whenever individuals see a document that has been "notarized," they should be confident that the notarial act has been performed correctly.

As a notary public it is your responsibility to use intelligence and judgment, and always perform your duties as required by Connecticut State law. You must remember that others are relying on your honesty and integrity. It is up to each and every notary public to provide quality service. By doing so, notaries earn the confidence and respect of those who use their services.

This revised and expanded manual has been prepared by the Office of the Secretary of the State as a tool to assist you in the performance of your duties. It contains valuable information and should be the first place you look whenever you have a question. It has been designed to answer the most common questions asked by notaries and to provide concise, helpful explanations of the issues notaries deal with on a daily basis. Please keep the manual handy and use it.

If you have comments or suggestions, please forward them to this office. If you find you have questions that are not addressed in the manual, feel free to contact this office at (860) 509-6100.

Working together, we can provide quality public service that we can all point to with pride.

thenk

Denise W. Merrill Secretary of the State

# **Connecticut Notary Public Manual**

# **Table of Contents**

# **1.0 Introduction – The Notary Public**

- 1.1 A Public Official, *1*
- 1.2 History, 1

# 2.0 Application for Appointment as a Notary Public

- 2.1 Application and Fee, 2
- 2.2 Examination, 2
- 2.3 Applications Returned for Additional Information, 2
- 2.4 Denial of Appointment or Renewal of Appointment, 2

# 3.0 Appointment as a Notary Public

- 3.1 Certificate of Appointment, *3*
- 3.2 Recording of Appointment and Oath of Office, *3*
- 3.3 Application for Renewal of Appointment, 3
- 3.4 Late Renewal, 4
- 3.5 Change of Name or Address and Replacement Certificates, 4
- 3.6 Resignation or Death of a Notary Public, 5

# 4.0 Duties and Responsibilities of the Notary Public

- 4.1 Powers of the Notary Public, 5
- 4.2 Acknowledgments, 5
  - 4.2.1 Refusal of Service, 8
- 4.3 Competence, 8
- 4.4 Determining Identity, 8
- 4.5 Credible Witness Acknowledgment, 8
- 4.6 Performing Notarial Acts for Minors, 9
- 4.7 Signature by Mark, 9
- 4.8 Oaths and Affirmations, *10*
- 4.9 Affidavits, 11
- 4.10 Depositions and Subpoenas to Deponents, 11
- 4.11 Copy Certification, 11
  4.11a Attestation Procedure as an Alternative to Copy Certification, 12
  4.11b Suggested Certified Copy Statement, 12

- 4.11c Sample Written Statement for Attestation Procedure, 13
- 4.11d Sample Written Statement for Certification, 13
- 4.12 The Notary's Signature, 14
- 4.13 The Notary's Seal, 14
- 4.14 Changes, Resignations, Lost or Stolen Seals and Stamps, 15
- 4.15 Influence, 15
- 4.16 Disqualification, 15
- 4.17 Prohibited Acts, 15
- 4.18 Notary Public Journals, 16
- 4.19 Wills and "Living Wills," 16

#### 5.0 Additional Useful Information for Notaries Public

- 5.1 Notaries Public Appointed in Other Jurisdictions, 16
- 5.2 Certification of Corporate Facts, 17
- 5.3 Translations, 17
- 5.4 Foreign Language Documents, 17
- 5.5 Authentication, 17
- 6.0 Liability, Bonding and Insurance, 18
- 7.0 Disciplinary Action, 18
- 8.0 Notary Fees, 18
- 9.0 The Office of the Secretary of the State, 19
- Special Notes, 20
- Appendix A Questions Commonly Asked by Notaries, 22
- Appendix B Statutes Affecting Notaries Public, 24
- Appendix C Additional Statutory References, 44
- Appendix D Forms, 46
- Appendix E Public Act No. 13-127, An Act Concerning the Unauthorized Practice of Law by Notaries Public, *50*

#### **INTRODUCTION**

#### **1.0 The Notary Public**

#### 1.1 A Public Official

The notary public is a public official appointed by the Secretary of the State through the power vested in the Secretary by state law. The notary has the power to administer oaths, take acknowledgments and perform other duties as permitted by law. It is very important that notaries remember the public nature of the office they hold. It is the duty of all notaries to serve the public, and they may not unreasonably refuse to perform a notarial act for any member of the public who tenders the statutory fee and meets all statutory requirements. However, the notary must also exercise equal care not to exceed the authority of the office by offering opinions or advice to persons requesting performance of notarial acts.

Integrity and skill are required of all notaries when performing their duties. Mere mechanical performance of the duties and responsibilities of this office cannot ensure the high level of performance and reliability that must be the hallmarks of each notarial act. The notary must always comply with Connecticut state law and provide high quality service, while remembering that a notary public does not have the authority to prepare legal documents or recommend a course of action in legal transactions. Any person who is in need of such assistance should be advised to consult an attorney.

#### **1.2 History**

The office of notary public has a proud and ancient heritage. As early as the days of the Roman Empire there is mention of its fore-runners: the "scriba", "notarii", "tabularii" and "tabelliones." Originally the "notarius" was a mere scribe taking notes and drafting instruments. Since few people could write, and commercial agreements were made orally, the services of the "notarius" were sought to reduce these agreements to a definite written record. With the growth of commerce and organized civil life, these services were needed for contracts, disposition of property, court records, etc. Practically all important documents since the early Roman Empire were drawn by notaries.

The English notary is still an ecclesiastical officer, although his duties are mainly secular, having at one time been appointed by the Pope and subsequently by the Archbishop of Canterbury. On October 25, 1639, Thomas Fugill, a member of Connecticut's New Haven Colony, became the *first* notary public in America.

In 1784, the governor of Connecticut was empowered to appoint as many notaries as commercial interests rendered necessary or convenient. During this time, notaries were used by merchants and shipmasters to attest writings and certify acts done by him or in his presence, proof of which might be required in distant places or in foreign countries.

In chapter XXVII of the acts of 1833, notaries were given the power to administer oaths, take depositions, and acknowledge deeds. Statutes were passed providing that acknowledgments of foreign grants, deeds, and mortgages by notaries of foreign jurisdictions would be accepted as valid in this state.

In 1800, there were fifteen notaries in Connecticut; in 1812, thirty-two; 1827, sixty-four; 1932, ten thousand seven hundred eighty-nine; and in 2010, approximately fifty-three thousand.

# 2.0 Application for Appointment as a Notary Public

# 2.1 Application and Fee

Anyone eighteen years of age or older who is a resident of Connecticut, or who has his/her principle place of business in Connecticut, may apply to become a notary public in the state of Connecticut. The application for appointment as notary public must be completed in the applicant's own handwriting and filed along with the nonrefundable statutory fee of one hundred and twenty dollars (\$120.00), with the Secretary of the State's office. *Incomplete and photocopied applications will be returned*.

<u>All applicants **must** provide their residence address</u>. Applicants who are <u>non-residents</u> **must also** provide the address of their principal place of business or employment in Connecticut, which must be kept current because it affects their status as a notary public according to statutory requirements. <u>All correspondence will be sent to the residence address</u>. A business address **will not** be used. Mail can be sent to a Post Office Box <u>only if mail delivery is not available</u> at the residence address.

# 2.2 Examination

The written examination is part of the notary public application form and must be completed by each applicant. All questions on the exam must be answered correctly before an applicant is appointed as a notary public. The questions may vary in each application, but each version of the exam is intended to be a comprehensive test of the applicant's knowledge and ability to perform his/her duties and responsibilities as a notary public.

# 2.3 Applications Returned for Additional Information

An application may be returned to an applicant for error or incompleteness. A returned application will be accompanied by a letter identifying the error or omission. It is the responsibility of the applicant to make the necessary additions or corrections and return the application to this office. No additional fee is required when resubmitting an application unless one of the reasons for return was nonpayment or underpayment of the statutory application fee.

# 2.4 Denial of Appointment or Renewal of Appointment

The Secretary of the State may deny an appointment or renewal of appointment to any individual who has been convicted of a felony or a crime of moral turpitude or dishonesty, who has had a previous commission revoked, or who has engaged in some form of notarial misconduct. Such actions could indicate that the individual will have difficulty meeting the high standard of honesty and integrity that all notaries public must maintain.

#### 3.0 Appointment of the Notary Public

#### 3.1 Certificate of Appointment

Each notary public is appointed by the Secretary of the State for a term of five years, beginning on the date of appointment and ending on the last day of the anniversary month five years later. The appointment is evidenced by a certificate bearing the notary's name, the facsimile signature of the Secretary of the State, and the countersignature of the Secretary's executive assistant. The certificate is evidence of the public office that the notary holds and should be kept in a safe place. The Secretary of the State's office recommends that notaries display their certificates where they perform their notarial duties. If the certificate is lost or destroyed, a duplicate may be obtained through this office for the nonrefundable fee of five dollars (\$5.00). Please refer to section **3.5** of this manual for further information.

#### 3.2 Recording of Appointment and Oath of Office

Upon receiving the *Certificate of Appointment*, and before performing any notarial act, the notary must take an oath of office. The appointment and oath of office must be recorded with the town clerk in the town in which the notary resides within thirty (30) days of having received the *Certificate of Appointment*. If the notary is a non-resident, the recording must be made with the town clerk of the town in which the notary's principal place of business is located. When taking the oath of office, the applicant who is now a notary public signs the *Certificate of Appointment* and the officer administering the oath of office completes the jurat section of the certificate. The recording of the oath and appointment must also be confirmed on the certificate by the town clerk.

After completing the **mandatory** recording described above, notaries <u>may</u> also record their certificate with town clerks in other towns. Any secondary recording is <u>optional</u>. The filing fee for recording a notary's commission and oath is ten dollars (\$10.00), set by Section 7-34a of the Connecticut General Statutes. The form of the oath prescribed in Section 1-25 of the Connecticut General Statutes is reproduced below, and Section 1-24 of the Connecticut General Statutes an oath.

#### Oath Taken by the Notary Public

"You do solemnly swear (or affirm, as the case may be) that you will support the Constitution of the United States, and the Constitution of the State of Connecticut and that you will faithfully discharge, according to law, the duties of the office of notary public to the best of your abilities. So help you God."

#### **3.3 Application for Renewal of Appointment**

Three months prior to the expiration date of a notary public appointment, an application for renewal is mailed to each notary to his/her **last reported residence address** on record with the Secretary of the State's Office. If an applicant wishes to continue to be a notary, the application must be completed in full and returned to this office with the nonrefundable statutory application fee of sixty dollars (**\$60.00**).

A new *Certificate of Appointment* will be issued to the notary, and the notary **must again** take the oath of office and record his/her commission and oath of office with the town clerk. Each term of appointment of a notary public is separate and the same procedure must be followed for each term. Please refer to section **3.2** above for details.

It is the notary public's responsibility to inform the Secretary of the State's office of any changes of name or address. Failure to do so may result in non-delivery of the renewal notice and eventual expiration of the notary's appointment. Please refer to section **3.4** for information on renewing an appointment after it has expired.

# 3.4 Late Renewal

A notary public's appointment expires at midnight on the "commission expiration date" that appears on his/her *Certificate of Appointment*. An individual whose commission has expired is no longer a notary public and cannot perform notarial acts. When renewing, a notary should return his/her renewal application as soon as possible to the Secretary of the State's Office.

Failure to return the renewal form in a timely manner could result in a lapse in the notary's term of appointment. If a notary's commission expires prior to the issuance and receipt of a new certificate, the notary is required to cease performing notarial acts until s/he has received the new *Certificate of Appointment* and has taken an oath of office for the new term.

A notary may use the renewal application form when renewing late, as long as the form is filed <u>within</u> 90 days of his/her commission expiration date. After 90 days s/he will be required to complete a new application, including the exam, in order to be reappointed for another term. In either case, the notary retains his/her original account number.

# 3.5 Change of Name or Address and Replacement Certificates

All notaries appointed under Connecticut law are required to report any changes of his/her name or residence address to the Secretary of the State's office within thirty (30) days. Non-resident notaries must maintain a principal place of business in Connecticut and must also report any change in his/her business address, as well any change in his/her residence address. Forms for reporting such changes are in Appendix D of this manual and may be photocopied for use by notaries. Forms may also be obtained from this office or from the Secretary of the State's website at www.sots.ct.gov. When completed, the forms must be filed with the secretary's office together with the nonrefundable fee of fifteen dollars (**\$15.00**).

After the forms are processed, a new certificate will be issued. It is not necessary for the notary to take another oath of office upon receiving a replacement certificate, but if the notary has relocated to a new town of residence or principal place of business, the replacement certificate must be recorded with the town clerk of the new town.

If a notary's *Certificate of Appointment* has been lost, damaged, or destroyed, a replacement certificate may be obtained by making a request in writing accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of five dollars (\$5.00).

#### 3.6 Resignation or Death of a Notary Public

A notary may resign his/her commission at any time by advising the Secretary of the State's office, in writing, of his/her intention to resign and the effective date of that resignation. All notaries must maintain either a residence or a principal place of business in this state in order to continue as a Connecticut notary public. Notaries who no longer have a residence or principal place of business in this state are obligated to resign his/her commission at the time s/he ceases to meet the statutory requirements for appointment.

As soon as possible after the death of a notary, the notary's personal representative shall notify the Secretary of the State's office in writing that the notary has died and the date of death.

In either event, if the notary used a notarial seal, the notary or the notary's personal representative must destroy or deface it to prevent its unauthorized use.

#### 4.0 Duties and Responsibilities of the Notary Public

#### **4.1 Powers of the Notary Public**

A notary appointed under Connecticut law may perform his/her duties anywhere within the state. The notary has the power to administer oaths, take acknowledgments, take depositions in civil actions or probate proceedings, issue, upon request, subpoenas for the appearance of witnesses to give depositions in civil matters or probate proceedings, make certified copies of some documents, and issue subpoenas for an appearance before out-of-state commissioners.

It is important for the notary to have a thorough understanding of how to perform each notarial act before attempting to do so because a notary may be liable for losses that result from improper performance of his/her duties.

#### 4.2 Acknowledgments

An acknowledgment is the most common notarial act that a notary will be called upon to perform. It is a formal declaration before an authorized official by a person who executed an instrument that such instrument is his/her free act and deed. A typical instrument requiring an acknowledgment is a conveyance of land, but virtually any document that is signed can also be acknowledged. The usual acknowledgment form states that the signer of the instrument personally appeared before the notary and acknowledged having signed the instrument for its stated purpose. For an acknowledgment to be properly taken, each of the following requirements must be fulfilled. The signer must:

- (1) personally appear before the notary;
- (2) acknowledge that s/he signed the instrument in question; and
- (3) state that it is his/her free act and deed.

The acknowledgment form is one type of notarial certificate. Many documents requiring an acknowledgment will already have the appropriate form included in the text, which the notary need only complete. Whenever a notary public takes an acknowledgment, it is vitally important that s/he complete the appropriate acknowledgment form, samples of which appear below.

If there is no such form, the notary may attach and complete an acknowledgment form on the document. This form may be a preprinted attachment, a rubber stamp, or may be printed or typed on the document. The completed acknowledgment form clearly indicates which notarial act has been performed and provides information concerning the execution of the document to anyone who views the document at a later date.

Notarization via video-conference is prohibited. The signer is not considered to have "personally appeared" before the notary, as required by statute. Additionally, a Connecticut notary does not have the authority to notarize within the state when the signer is out of state.

Commissioners of the superior court from states other than Connecticut are not given full faith and credit in regard to acknowledgements. Therefore, in order to take acknowledgements in Connecticut, a commissioner of the superior court from another state must become a notary public in Connecticut.

Please note that when signing the acknowledgment, a notary should print his or her name under the signature. This will assist the Secretary of the State's office in verifying the notary for authentication and apostille purposes.

# FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR INDIVIDUAL:

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_ ss. (Town/City)

On this the \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_, before me, <u>(name of notary)</u>, the undersigned officer, personally appeared <u>(name of individual or individuals)</u>, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person(s) whose name(s) <u>(is or are)</u> subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that <u>(he, she or they)</u> executed the same for the purposes therein contained.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

Signature of Notary Public Date Commission Expires:

Printed Name of Notary

# FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR CORPORATION:

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_ ss. (Town/City)

On this the \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_, before me, <u>(name of notary)</u>, the undersigned officer, personally appeared <u>(name of officer)</u>, who acknowledged himself/herself to be the <u>(title officer)</u> of <u>(name of corporation)</u> a corporation, and that s/he as such <u>(title of officer)</u>, being authorized so to do executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by himself/herself as <u>(title of officer)</u>.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

Signature of Notary Public Date Commission Expires:\_\_\_\_\_

Printed Name of Notary

#### 4.2.1 Refusal of Service

A notary under Connecticut General Statute section 3-94f **Prohibition re lawful transaction,** "... shall not unreasonably refuse to perform notarial acts in lawful transactions for any requesting person who tenders payment of statutory fee." This office does <u>not</u> define the term "unreasonable."

There may be legal implications not covered by this manual of which your employer may be concerned. Please consult counsel on these matters.

# **4.3** Competence

The notary must be confident that the individual requesting notarial services is competent. Competence means that the individual understands the meaning of his/her actions. The notary should refuse to perform any notarial act for a person who is clearly incompetent. If a question of an individual's competence arises, the notary may consult that person's physician or attorney.

# **4.4 Determining Identity**

Acknowledgment forms for individuals (see form on page 6) state that the notary either personally knows or has satisfactorily proven the identity of the signer on the basis of documents. If the notary does not know the signer personally, Connecticut law (see Section 3-94a(9) of the Connecticut General Statutes in Appendix B) requires that the signer provide the notary with at least two forms of identification containing the individual's signature, at least one of which also contains a photograph or a physical description of the signer.

Neither a social security card nor a birth certificate is to be used as a form of identification. If an individual requesting notarial services does not have satisfactory forms of identification, identity can be established by the oath or affirmation of a credible witness.

# 4.5 Credible Witness Acknowledgment

A credible witness is an individual who is personally known by the notary and who personally knows the signer. For example, a notary could rely on a co-worker known to the notary, to identify a third party who does not have the required forms of identification. It is <u>essential</u> that the credible witness be "<u>personally known</u>" to the notary. Like all witnesses, the credible-witness should be honest, competent, and disinterested in the transaction. The notary must administer an oath or affirmation to the credible witness and may use the following acknowledgment certificate:

# FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR CREDIBLE WITNESS:

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_ ss.(Town/City)

On this the \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, in the form of the oath/affirmation of <u>credible witness</u>, to be the person(s) whose name(s) \_\_\_\_\_\_ (signer) \_\_\_\_\_\_ subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that (<u>he, she, they</u>) executed the same for the purposes therein contained. In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

Signature of Notary Public My Commission Expires:\_\_\_\_\_

Printed name of Notary Public

# 4.6 Performing Notarial Acts for Minors

Notaries will occasionally be asked to perform notarial acts for younger persons. Two issues arise in such cases that make these transactions different from the usual notarial act. Frequently, younger persons do not have adequate forms of identification to meet the requirement for satisfactory evidence of identification. One means of addressing this obstacle is to recommend that the notarial act be performed by a notary who personally knows the individual.

Another option would be to obtain identification through the oath or affirmation of a credible witness (see Sec. **4.5** Credible Witness Acknowledgment).

The second issue is that of competence. The notary must be confident that the younger person understands the nature of the document s/he is signing.

# 4.7 Signature by Mark

If a person cannot sign his or her name because of a physical handicap or illiteracy, a mark may serve as a signature. A mark, usually an "**X**", suffices. Two witnesses in addition to the notary should be present when a person signs by mark. The name of the person who signs by mark should be written near the mark by one of the witnesses. The witnesses should also subscribe their own names to the document and to the notary's journal as witnesses. The following form is a widely used signature by mark certificate:

# FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR SIGNATURE BY MARK:

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_ ss. (Town/City)

On this the \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_\_, known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person who made and acknowledged making <u>(his, her)</u> mark on the within instrument in my presence and in the presence of the two persons indicated below who have signed the within instrument as witnesses, one of whom, <u>(name of witness)</u>, also wrote the name of the signer by mark near the mark.

Signature of Notary Public Date Commission Expires:\_\_\_\_\_

Printed of Notary Public

(Witness's Name and Address) (Witness's Name and Address)

# 4.8 Oaths and Affirmations

Oaths and Affirmations must be given in person. An oath is an affirmation of the truth of a statement, which renders any person who willfully makes untrue statements subject to the penalties for perjury or false statement. The term includes all forms of attestations by which a party signifies that he is bound in conscience to perform the act faithfully and truthfully. The following are the oaths and ceremony required when administering the oaths:

# OATHS ADMINISTERED BY NOTARY:

"Do you solemnly swear that the statements contained herein are true to the best of your knowledge and belief, so help you God?"

OR

"You solemnly swear that you will faithfully discharge, according to law, your duties as.....to the best of your ability, so help you God?"

The person taking the oath shall hold up his/her right hand as the notary administers the oath and should answer "I do." If a person, by reason of scruples or conscience, objects to such a ceremony, or if the notary administering the oath has reason to believe that any other ceremony will be more binding upon the conscience of the person taking the oath, s/he may permit or require any other ceremony to be used. For example, instead of the usual form of an oath, a solemn affirmation may be administered to the person(s) as prescribed: the words "solemnly and sincerely affirm and declare" should replace the word "swear," and the words "upon the pains and penalties of perjury or false statement" should replace the words "so help me God,".

#### 4.9 Affidavits

An affidavit is a voluntarily-made written or printed declaration or statement of facts confirmed by an oath or affirmation of the declaring party before an officer having authority to administer such oath or affirmation. The usual procedure for indicating that an oath has been administered in connection with an affidavit is as follows:

The notary administers an oath to the party making the affidavit. The party then signs the affidavit in the presence of the notary. The notary then attaches the following certificate, which is commonly called a **jurat**, to the affidavit:

Subscribed and sworn to before me this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_

Signature of Notary Public Date Commission Expires

Printed Name of Notary Public

When a notary administers an oath and prepares a **jurat**, the emphasis is on the accuracy of the statements in the document and the signer's identity. When a notary takes an acknowledgment, the emphasis is on the free act and deed of the signer and the verification of his/her identity.

#### 4.10 Subpoenas to Deponents

The average notary is not called upon to perform this duty because it requires technical knowledge of the method and steps to be employed in order to perform this function properly. A notary should not attempt to issue a subpoena unless s/he is thoroughly familiar with the preparation of these documents. A notary may refer a person seeking this service to the clerk of the court in which the action is being heard, or to an attorney. Court clerks have the authority to issue subpoenas on behalf of pro se clients. See Appendix C for the relevant statutory references.

# 4.11 Copy Certification

Under Connecticut law, notaries have the authority to prepare "certified" or "true" copies of certain documents or use an alternative procedure under Sec. 4.11a.

For copy certification, a notary public is presented with an original document and: (1) copies or supervises the copying of such document using a photographic or electronic copying process; (2) compares the original document presented to the copy; and (3) certifies that the copy is an accurate and complete reproduction of the original work presented.

However, there are exceptions to this law that include: (1) the copying of a vital or public record; (2) a document required to be recorded by a state or political subdivision; or (3) a document issued by a federal agency and federal law does not allow the copying of the document.

Vital records include a certificate of birth, death, fetal death, or marriage. Public records include documents that are filed with and maintained by a public record keeper such as a town clerk, court clerk, or the Secretary of the State. Copies of public records may only be "certified" when the authority having custody of the records confirms that they are true and accurate copies of the originals. This may also include certain Immigration and Naturalization Service (INS), Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or Department of State documents.

If a notary is asked to perform a notarial act in connection with a document that appears to be a public record, the notary should determine if the copy would be more appropriately prepared by the public record keeper who has custody of the original.

# 4.11a. Attestation Procedure as an Alternative to Copy Certification

The notary may also request that the person presenting the document make a photocopy and prepare a written statement, that may be attached to or written on the photocopy itself, stating that it is a true copy of the original (See Section 4.11b). The requesting party signs the statement in the notary's presence. The form of jurat that appears under Sec. 4.9 is attached and completed by the notary.

Sections 4.11c and 4.11d also apply to the attestation procedure.

# 4.11b. Suggested Certified Copy Statement

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_

On this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ (year), I certify that the preceding or attached document, is a true, exact, complete, and unaltered copy made by me of (description of document), presented to me by the document's custodian, \_\_\_\_\_\_, and to the best of my knowledge, the photocopied document is neither a public record or vital record, not a publicly recordable document, certified copies of which are available from an official source other than a notary.

Signature of Notary Public

Date Commission Expires

Printed name of Notary Public

# 4.11c Sample Written Statement for Attestation Procedure

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_

I, (<u>Name of Custodian of Original Document</u>), hereby swear (or affirm) that the attached copy of (<u>Description of attached document, title, or type of document</u>) is a true and accurate copy of a document in my possession.

<b>d</b> .	C	$\alpha$ $i$	C	O · · 1	Document
Nignature	OT	( listodian	OT.	()riginal	Document
Dignature	UI.	Custouran	UI.	Onginar	Document

Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) to before me on this \_\_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

Signature of Notary Public

Date Commission Expires

Printed name of Notary Public

# 4.11d Sample Written Statement for Certification

State of Connecticut

County of \_\_\_\_\_\_ ss. (Town/City)

On this the \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, I certify that the \_\_\_\_(affixed or attached document) has been visually confirmed by me to be a true, exact, and complete copy of the image or text of \_\_\_\_\_\_(description of original document) \_\_\_\_\_, presented to me by \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ or held in my custody as a notorial record, and that, to the best of my knowledge, the copied document is neither a vital record, a public record, nor a publicly recordable document, certified copies of which may be available from an official source other than a notary public.

Signature of Notary Public

Date Commission Expires: \_\_\_\_\_

#### 4.12 The Notary's Signature

Whenever a notary's signature is required, it must be the <u>original signature</u> of the notary signed exactly as the name appears on the notary's certificate of appointment. If a seal and/or stamp is not used, the notary should type, stamp, or print legibly his/her name in close proximity to his/her signature. The notary <u>cannot</u> use a signature stamp in place of his/her signature, and no other person can sign on behalf of the notary.

# 4.13 The Notary's Seal

Connecticut state law does not require that notaries obtain and use a seal or rubber stamp. Even though the use of a seal is optional, state law does prescribe the format of the seal to be used. The notary seal must include the notary's name as it appears on the certificate of appointment, the words "Notary Public" and "Connecticut" as shown in Fig. 1. State law does give the notary the option of having the words "My Commission Expires (commission expiration date)" appear on the seal. However, most notaries find that it is more practical to have their commission expiration date appear on a separate rubber stamp along with their name and title of notary public, as shown in Fig. 2.



John Q. Notary Notary Public My Commission Expires Mon., Day, Year

Fig. 1 Form of Notary's Seal

Fig. 2 Form of Notary's Rubber Stamp

All seals and stamps are obtained from private vendors at the notary's own expense and remain the property of the notary. This is true even if the notary's employer paid for these items. The only person who has the authority to possess and use a notary's seal and/or stamp is the notary whose name appears on the seal.

When using the seal, the impression should be affixed near, but not over, the notary's signature. The stamp bearing the words "My Commission Expires" should be placed below the notary's signature, and the notary must write in the date on which their commission expires, unless the date appears on the stamp. It is important for the notary to remember that s/he must sign his/her name exactly as it appears on his/her certificate of appointment and notary seal.

### 4.14 Changes, Resignations, Lost or Stolen Seals and Stamps

When a notary files a name change with the Secretary of the State's office, the <u>name</u> change becomes effective the date of the issuance of a new Certificate of Appointment. A notary who uses a seal or stamp will need to obtain a new seal or stamp reflecting the name change. See Sec. 3.5 for instructions and Appendix D for the change of name form.

When a notary who uses a seal or stamp resigns his/her commission, or allows his/her commission to expire, s/he must destroy or deface his/her seal or stamp to prevent its unauthorized use.

If a notary seal or stamp is lost or stolen, the notary should notify both the local police and the Office of the Secretary of the State. The notary should also notify the Department of Motor Vehicles, Dealers, Repairers & Emissions Division, in writing, at 60 State Street, Wethersfield, CT 06109. The Secretary's office will record the loss or theft to protect the notary. If the notary chooses to replace the seal, some distinguishing element may be introduced to differentiate the new seal.

#### 4.15 Influence

A notary must always remain impartial and cannot advise or influence a person to enter into or refrain from entering into a lawful transaction that involves a notarial act to be performed by the notary.

# 4.16 Disqualification

A notary is disqualified from performing a notarial act if the notary is a signatory of the document to be notarized. Persons who only witness the signing of a document are not considered to be signatories and, therefore, may also perform notarial acts in connection with documents they have witnessed.

It is important for the notary to remember that all notarial acts must be performed impartially. The Secretary of the State's office strongly recommends that notaries exercise great caution when performing notarial acts in transactions where the notary has some beneficial interest or involve family members. In certain instances, the notary may choose to voluntarily disqualify him/herself from performing notarial acts in connection with such transactions.

# 4.17 Prohibited Acts

A notary is prohibited from performing any official act with the intent to deceive or defraud, and it is the responsibility of the notary to refuse to perform any such act.

A notary shall not unreasonably refuse to perform notarial acts in lawful transactions for any requesting person who tenders payment of the statutory fee and meets all other requirements prescribed by statute.

The notary is also prohibited from using his/her title or seal in an endorsement or to promote any product, service, contest, or other offering in any way.

A notary is prohibited from assuming, using, or advertising the title of "notario" or "notario public" unless (1) s/he is a licensed attorney or (2) s/he indicates in an advertisement

that s/he is not licensed as an attorney in the State of Connecticut (See Connecticut Public Act 13-127 in Appendix E). Violation of this law is considered a class D felony.

# 4.18 Notary Public Journals

Connecticut state law does not require that notaries maintain a journal of their notarial acts. However, the Secretary of the State's office strongly recommends that they do so. The journal is a record of the notarial acts performed and could be vital in protecting the notary from potential liability. The journal should be a bound book to prevent loss or substitution of pages, and the notary should record the following information for each transaction:

- (1) the date and time of the notarial act;
- (2) the nature or type of notarial act performed;
- (3) a description of the document or proceeding;
- (4) the signature, printed name and address of each person for whom a notarial act is performed;
- (5) the method by which a person's identity has been determined;
- (6) the fee, if any is charged; and
- (7) the place where the notarial act was performed.

# 4.19 Wills and "Living Wills"

Performing any notarial act in connection with a will is a serious matter because of the importance of the document itself, the circumstances under which it will be used, and the consequences that could result from the improper execution of the document. A notary should only perform a notarial act in connection with a will if the instrument specifically provides for such act. (See Section 45a-251 of the Connecticut General Statutes in Appendix B)

If a notary is uncertain as to how to perform a notarial act in connection with a will, the notary should seek the advice of an attorney or refuse to perform the notarial act. A notary public is not trained or authorized to assist persons in the execution of wills. If the testator asks the notary for assistance, the notary should refer that person to an attorney. The notary should be particularly cautious with regard to holographic or "handwritten" wills.

Notaries may also be asked to take acknowledgments in connection with "Living Wills." <u>These documents are not wills</u>, but rather an expression of an individual's wishes concerning any aspect of his/her health care. Notaries may take acknowledgments in connection with these documents using the usual procedures for that notarial act (see Sec. 4.2, 4.3 and 4.4).

# 5.0 Additional Useful Information for Notaries Public

In the course of performing their duties and responsibilities, notaries are often confronted with unusual requests and situations. In the following paragraphs is information about some of the more common problems one may encounter as a notary public.

# 5.1 Notaries Public Appointed in Other Jurisdictions

Each state of the United States and virtually every other country in the world also appoint notaries. The duties, responsibilities and authority of notaries appointed in other jurisdictions

may vary considerably from Connecticut-appointed notaries. This is particularly true of notaries appointed in other countries. For example, in many Spanish-speaking countries, the "notario publico" is empowered to perform certain services that are reserved to the legal profession in the United States.

Effective October 1, 2013, notaries public appointed by the State of Connecticut must never use a foreign language term to describe their office. For example, a notary shall not assume, use, or advertise the title of "notario" or "notario publico" unless (1) s/he is a licensed attorney or (2) s/he indicates in an advertisement or otherwise provides written notice that s/he is not licensed as an attorney in the State of Connecticut (See Public Act 13-127 in Appendix E). Any use of such a term could mislead a person seeking notarial services into believing that the notary had the authority to provide services which are not permitted under Connecticut's notary law.

# 5.2 Certification of Corporate Facts

Notaries in some foreign countries are empowered to prepare certificates stating facts about corporations. These certificates often confirm that a corporation exists, that certain individuals have been duly elected as officers, and that the notary's review of the corporate by-laws confirms that the corporation is authorized to act in certain transactions.

<u>Connecticut notaries have no authority to certify corporate facts</u>. The usual procedure in the United States is for the president, secretary, or another officer of a corporation to certify the accuracy of corporate information, including the incumbency of officers. That certificate can then be acknowledged or sworn to before a Connecticut notary public.

# 5.3 Translations

A notary public has no authority to certify translations. If a notary public has the ability to prepare translations of documents from one language to another, s/he <u>cannot</u> notarize that translation. The accuracy of the translation can be made under oath, but the oath and notarial certificate must be completed by another notary, or by another person authorized to administer oaths. The notary <u>cannot</u> perform both acts in connection with the same document.

# **5.4 Foreign Language Documents**

On occasion, notaries public will be asked to perform notarial acts in connection with documents prepared in a language that they do not understand. The notary should use his/her best judgment when deciding whether or not to perform a notarial act under these circumstances.

If the notary decides to proceed with the notarial act, s/he should be able to determine the nature of the document(s). If the notary keeps a journal this notarial act should be noted in his/her journal. When performing a notarial act in connection with documents that s/he cannot understand, s/he should only sign a notarial certificate (the form of acknowledgment or jurat) in a language s/he can read and understand.

# 5.5 Authentication

On occasion, particularly when documents are to be used outside of this country, the appointing authority will be asked to confirm the appointment and term of a notary public. This

process is often described as "authentication". The Secretary of the State's office will prepare and attach a certificate to the originally and properly executed document(s).

This confirmation can only be to Connecticut public officials, whose term of office is on record with the Secretary of the State's office. The notary public who performed the notarial act on a particular document requiring an authentication should contact or refer the individuals to the Secretary of the State's office for additional information at (860) 509-6100.

#### 6.0 Liability, Bonding and Insurance

A notary is liable to any person for damages that result from the misconduct of the notary. The notary may elect to partially protect themselves from parties seeking damages by purchasing a bond, or errors and omissions insurance. These products are available through insurance agents and notary organizations. The notary should discuss the nature and extent of the protection available through a bond with the provider.

An employer of a notary is also liable to any person for damages that result from the misconduct of the notary if the employer ordered or approved of the notary's misconduct, either in the specific transaction or implicitly by previous actions in at least one prior transaction.

If the notary's misconduct resulted from a threat of dismissal or demotion made by the employer in connection with a particular notarial act, or implicitly by previous actions in at least one prior transaction, the employer is liable to the notary for damages recovered from the notary. The employer is also liable to the notary for damages caused by dismissal, demotion, or other action taken against the notary resulting from the notary's refusal to commit official misconduct.

# 7.0 Disciplinary Action

The Secretary of the State is empowered to

(1)issue a written, official warning and reprimand to a notary or

(2)temporarily suspend or permanently revoke a notary's commission

for:

(a) an act of official notarial misconduct,

(b) any reason for which an application might be denied, or

(c) a violation of any provision of the general statutes.

The notary who is the subject of a charge or complaint will be given an opportunity to respond prior to any disciplinary action being taken, in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act, Sec. 4-166 through 4-189 of the Connecticut General Statutes. In the event that a notary's commission is either suspended or revoked, the town clerk of each town in the state will be notified by the Secretary of the State's Office.

# 8.0 Notary Fees

The fee for any act performed by a notary public, in accordance with the provisions of the general statutes, is five dollars (\$5.00) plus an additional thirty-five cents (\$.35) for each mile traveled.

# 9.0 The Office of the Secretary of the State

As the appointing agent, the Secretary of the State has authority over notaries public in the State of Connecticut. Any individual who needs to communicate with this office regarding notaries and the duties and responsibilities of notaries in this state should write to Office of the Secretary of the State, PO Box 150470, Hartford CT 06115-0470, Attention: Notary Public Unit, or call (860) 509-6100.

# **Special Notes:**

Paying close attention to details safeguards and eliminates the reason for rejection, delay and notarial errors of an improperly executed document.

# **Examples:**

**1. Improper:** Documents that <u>do not</u> have preprinted or handwritten notarial certificates attached to them.

**Proper:** The notary should always place a notarial certificate on the document that requires notarization.

**2. Improper:** A notarial certificate <u>not signed</u> by the notary, or a notarial certificate with a seal and/or stamp, but <u>not signed</u> by the notary.

**Proper:** In any circumstance when the notary signature is required, it must be the <u>original signature</u> of the notary signed exactly as the name appears on the notary's certificate of appointment. The notary cannot use a signature stamp. No other person can sign on behalf of the notary. If a seal and/or stamp is not used the notary's name should be typed, stamped or printed legibly in close proximity to the signature.

**3. Improper:** A notarial certificate signed by the notary without his/her date of commission expiration.

**Proper:** The notary public must always sign and provide their commission expiration date, which indicates s/he is currently commissioned a notary public.

**4. Improper:** A document <u>not signed</u> by the intended signer.

**Proper:** A notary must always witness a signature on a document. The signature cannot be a photocopy. The signer must always appear in person.

5. **Improper:** The notary public signs a public record and/or certifies a public record. Public records are: certificates of birth, death, fetal death, marriage, court certified documents such as judgments, certain town records and certain immigration and naturalization documents.

**Proper:** Copies of public records can only be certified when the authority having custody of records confirms that they are true and accurate copies of the original. It is **<u>illegal</u>** for **Connecticut** notaries to perform notarial acts in connection with any such documents.

# **MY NOTES:**

# Appendix A

# Questions Commonly Asked by Notaries

Q. How many witnesses are there to a deed?

A. Usually, two; however, a notary must not advise on the form of a deed. This should be done in conjunction with an attorney.

- Q. Can a notary who is not an attorney assist in the completion of legal forms?
- A. No. The notary must always remain impartial and should not assist a client in the completion of any forms. If the form is a legal instrument, the notary's assistance could be determined to be unauthorized practice of the law.
- Q. How important is a notary journal?
- A. Very important. It is a record of the notary's acts and can be used to demonstrate that a notarial act was properly performed.
- Q. Can a notary acknowledge his/her own signature?
- A. Absolutely not. It is impossible for a notary to be a witness to his/her own act. It is strictly prohibited by Connecticut law.
- Q. Can a Connecticut notary perform a notarial act outside of the state?
- A. No. A Connecticut notary is appointed for the State of Connecticut only. S/he may perform notarial acts anywhere within the state, but at no time can s/he perform such acts outside of the state.
- Q. When is it proper to refuse to perform a notarial act?
- A. As a public official, a notary cannot unreasonably refuse to perform a notarial act for anyone who tenders the statutory fee and meets all other requirements prescribed by statute. However, if the notary seriously questions the identity or competence of the signer, or if the instrument in question is blank, contains a false statement, or is intended to deceive or defraud, the notary may and <u>should refuse</u> to perform the notarial act.
- Q. Does notarization mean that the document is "true" or "legal"?
- A. No, notaries are not responsible for the accuracy or legality of documents they notarize. Notaries verify the identity of signers. The signers are responsible for the content of their documents.
- Q. What does the <u>ss.</u>, in the venue of a notarial certificate mean?
- A. The *ss.*, is an abbreviation of the Latin word "scilicet," meaning "namely," or more particularly, the exact location or the designated particular place within a city and/or county where the official notarial act was performed.
- Q. Can a notary serve as both a notary and a witness on the same document?
- A. A notary is disqualified from performing a notarial act if the notary is a signatory of the document to be notarized. Persons who only witness the signing of a document are not

considered to be signatories and, therefore, may also perform notarial acts in connection with documents they have witnessed (see Sec. **4.16**).

- Q. Can a notary be a beneficiary of a document that s/he is notarizing?
- A. No. A notary is disqualified from performing a notarial act if s/he is a signatory of the document to be notarized or if s/he has a direct material, financial, or personal interest in the document.
- Q. Can a notary notarize documents for family members?
- A. Yes. A notary can notarize documents for family members. However, a notary should refrain from performing a notarial act for a family member if the notary cannot perform his/her duties impartially, as this would constitute a conflict of interest. Additionally, a notary is disqualified from performing a notarial act for family members if s/he is also a signatory of the document or has a direct material, financial, or personal interest in the document to be signed.

# Appendix B

### **Statutes Affecting Notaries Public**

### CHAPTER 4

### OATHS

**Sec. 1-22. Ceremony.** The ceremony to be used, by persons to whom an oath is administered, shall be the holding up of the right hand; but when any person, by reason of scruples of conscience, objects to such ceremony or when the court or authority by whom the oath is to be administered has reason to believe that any other ceremony will be more binding upon the conscience of the witness, such court or authority may permit or require any other ceremony to be used.

(1949 Rev., S. 3573.)

**Sec. 1-23. When affirmation may be used.** When any person, required to take an oath, from scruples of conscience declines to take it in the usual form or when the court is satisfied that any person called as a witness does not believe in the existence of a Supreme Being, a solemn affirmation may be administered to him in the form of the oath prescribed, except that instead of the word "swear" the words "solemnly and sincerely affirm and declare" shall be used and instead of the words "so help you God" the words "upon the pains and penalties of perjury or false statement" shall be used.

(1949 Rev., S. 3574; 1971, P.A. 871, S. 57.)

Sec. 1-24. Who may administer oaths. The following officers may administer oaths: (1) The clerks of the Senate, the clerks of the House of Representatives and the chairpersons of committees of the General Assembly or of either branch thereof, during its session; (2) state officers, as defined in subsection (t) of section 9-1, judges and clerks of any court, family support magistrates, judge trial referees, justices of the peace, commissioners of the Superior Court, notaries public, town clerks and assistant town clerks, in all cases where an oath may be administered, except in a case where the law otherwise requires; (3) commissioners on insolvent estates, auditors, arbitrators and committees, to parties and witnesses, in all cases tried before them; (4) assessors and boards of assessment appeals, in cases coming before them; (5) commissioners appointed by governors of other states to take the acknowledgment of deeds, in the discharge of their official duty; (6) the moderator of a school district meeting, in such meeting, to the clerk of such district, as required by law; (7) the first selectman, in any matter before the board of selectmen; (8) the Chief Medical Examiner, Deputy Medical Examiner and assistant medical examiners of the Office of the Medical Examiner, in any matter before them; (9) registrars of vital statistics, in any matter before them; (10) any chief inspector or inspector appointed pursuant to section 51-286; (11) registrars of voters, deputy registrars, assistant registrars, and moderators, in any matter before them; (12) special assistant registrars, in matters provided for in subsections (b) and (c) of section 9-19b and section 9-19c; (13) the Commissioner of Public Safety and any sworn member of any local police department or the Division of State Police within the Department of Public Safety, in all affidavits, statements,

depositions, complaints or reports made to or by any member of any local police department or said Division of State Police or any constable who is under the supervision of said commissioner or any of such officers of said Division of State Police and who is certified under the provisions of sections 7-294a to 7-294e, inclusive, and performs criminal law enforcement duties; (14) judge advocates of the United States Army, Navy, Air Force and Marine Corps, law specialists of the United States Coast Guard, adjutants, assistant adjutants, acting adjutants and personnel adjutants, commanding officers, executive officers and officers whose rank is lieutenant commander or major, or above, of the armed forces, as defined in section 27-103, to persons serving with or in the armed forces, as defined in said section, or their spouses; (15) investigators, deputy investigators, investigative aides, secretaries, clerical assistants, social workers, social worker trainees, paralegals and certified legal interns employed by or assigned to the Public Defender Services Commission in the performance of their assigned duties; (16) bail commissioners employed by the Judicial Department in the performance of their assigned duties; (17) juvenile matter investigators employed by the Division of Criminal Justice in the performance of their assigned duties; (18) the chairperson of the Connecticut Siting Council or the chairperson's designee; (19) the presiding officer at an agency hearing under section 4-177b; (20) family relations counselors employed by the Judicial Department and support enforcement officers and investigators employed by the Department of Social Services Bureau of Child Support Enforcement and the Judicial Department, in the performance of their assigned duties; (21) the chairperson, vice-chairperson, members and employees of the Board of Pardons and Paroles, in the performance of their assigned duties; and (22) the Commissioner of Correction or the commissioner's designee.

Note: See Sec. 1-25 of the Connecticut General Statutes for Form of Oaths.

(1949 Rev., S. 3575; 1955, S. 1958d; 1959, P.A. 152, S. 2; 1961, P.A. 165; 1967, P.A. 66, S. 1; 1969, P.A. 699, S. 17; 1971, P.A. 412, S. 9; 752; P.A. 73-185; P.A. 74-170; 74-186, S. 3, 12; P.A. 75-567, S. 19, 80; P.A. 76-111, S. 2; P.A. 77-614, S. 486, 587, 610; P.A. 78-303, S. 85, 136; P.A. 79-143, S. 3; 79-181; P.A. 80-174; 80-190, S. 1; 80-281, S. 1, 31; P.A. 82-104; 82-298, S. 6; P.A. 86-180; 86-187, S. 1, 10; P.A. 87-316, S. 1; P.A. 88-132; 88-317, S. 35, 107; P.A. 90-57; P.A. 91-24, S. 1, 8; P.A. 93-262, S. 1, 87; 93-329, S. 7; 93-435, S. 59, 95; P.A. 95-283, S. 22, 68; P.A. 96-58, S. 1, 2; P.A. 97-256, S. 2; P.A. 01-7; 01-84, S. 1, 26; P.A. 02-71, S. 1; 02-132, S. 1; P.A. 03-278, S. 1; P.A. 04-234, S. 2; 04-257, S. 113; P.A. 05-108, S. 1.)

# CHAPTER 6

# UNIFORM ACKNOWLEDGMENT ACT

**Sec. 1-28. Permissible forms of acknowledgment.** Any instrument may be acknowledged in the manner and form now provided by other laws of this state, or as provided by this chapter.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 1.)

**Sec. 1-29. Acknowledgments within state.** The acknowledgment of any instrument may be made in this state before: (1) A judge of a court of record or a family support magistrate; (2) a clerk or deputy clerk of a court having a seal; (3) a town clerk; (4) a notary public; (5) a justice of the peace; or (6) an attorney admitted to the bar of this state.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 2; P.A. 87-316, S. 2; P.A. 03-278, S. 2.)

**Sec. 1-30. Acknowledgments in other states, territories or possessions.** The acknowledgment of any instrument may be made without the state but within the United States or a territory or insular possession of the United States and within the jurisdiction of the officer, before: (1) A clerk or deputy clerk of any federal court; (2) a clerk or deputy clerk of any court of record of any state or other jurisdiction; (3) a notary public; (4) a commissioner of deeds; (5) any person authorized by the laws of such other jurisdiction to take acknowledgments; (6) any attorney admitted to the bar in this state as provided in section 1-31a.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 3; P.A. 91-110, S. 6, 9.)

**Sec. 1-31. Acknowledgments without United States.** The acknowledgment of any instrument may be made without the United States before: (1) An ambassador, minister, charge d'affaires, counselor to or secretary of a legation, consul general, consul, vice-consul, commercial attache, or consular agent of the United States accredited to the country where the acknowledgment is made; (2) a notary public of the country where the acknowledgment is made; (3) a judge or clerk of a court of record of the country where the acknowledgment is made; (4) any attorney admitted to the bar in this state as provided in section 1-31a.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 4; P.A. 91-110, S. 7, 9.)

**Sec. 1-31a. Acknowledgments by attorney outside state.** An acknowledgment of any instrument pertaining to real property located in this state or a power of attorney may be made outside the state before an attorney admitted to the bar in this state.

(P.A. 91-110, S. 8, 9.)

**Sec. 1-32. Identification of person making acknowledgment.** The officer taking the acknowledgment shall know or have satisfactory evidence that the person making the acknowledgment is the person described in and who executed the instrument.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 5.)

**Sec. 1-33. Married women.** An acknowledgment of a married woman may be made in the same form as though she were unmarried.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 6.)

**Sec. 1-34. Certificate of officer.** An officer taking the acknowledgment shall endorse thereon or attach thereto a certificate substantially in one of the following forms:

(1) By individuals:

State of .... County of ....

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared ...., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name .... subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that .... he .... executed the same for the purposes therein contained.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

····

Title of Officer.

(2) By a corporation:

State of .... County of ....

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared .... who acknowledged himself to be the .... of ...., a corporation, and that he, as such ...., being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by himself as ....

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

....

Title of Officer

(3) By an attorney in fact:

State of .... County of ....

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared ...., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed as attorney in fact for ...., and acknowledged that he executed the same as the act of his principal for the purposes therein contained.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

·····

Title of Officer

(4) By any public officer or deputy thereof, or by any trustee, administrator, guardian, or executor:

State of .... County of ....

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared ...., of the State (County or City as the case may be) of ...., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person described in the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same in the capacity therein stated and for the purposes therein contained.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

....

Title of Officer

(5) By a limited liability company:

State of .... County of ....

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared .... who acknowledged himself to be the .... of ...., a (member managed or manager managed) limited liability company, and that he, as such ...., being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the limited liability company by himself as ....

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

••••

Title of Officer

(6) By a registered limited liability partnership:

State of .... County of ....

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared .... who acknowledged himself to be the .... of ...., a registered limited liability partnership, and that he, as such ...., being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the registered limited liability partnership by himself as ....

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand.

....

Title of Officer

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 7; February, 1965, P.A. 226; P.A. 04-132, S. 2.)

**Sec. 1-35. Identification of acknowledging officer.** The certificate of the acknowledging officer shall be completed by his signature, his official seal if he has one, the title of his office and, if he is a notary public, the date his commission expires.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 8.)

**Sec. 1-36.** Authentication. (1) If the acknowledgment is taken within this state or is made without the United States by an officer of the United States no authentication shall be necessary.

(2) If the acknowledgment is taken without this state, but in the United States, or a territory or insular possession of the United States, the certificate shall be authenticated by a certificate as to the official character of such officer, executed, if the acknowledgment is taken by a clerk or deputy clerk of a court, by the presiding judge of the court or, if the acknowledgment is taken by a notary public, or any other person authorized to take acknowledgments, by a clerk of a court of record of the county, parish or district, or the clerk of the town, in which the acknowledgment is taken. The signature to such authenticating certificate may be a facsimile printed, stamped, photographed or engraved thereon when the certificate bears the seal of the authenticating officer. A judge or clerk authenticating an acknowledgment shall endorse thereon or attach thereto a certificate in substantially the following form:

State of .... County of ....

I .... (judge or clerk) of the .... in and for said county, which court is a court of record, having a seal, (or I, clerk of the town of .... in said county,) do hereby certify that .... by and before whom the foregoing (or annexed) acknowledgment was taken, was at the time of taking the same a notary public (or other officer) residing (or authorized to act) in said county, and was authorized by the laws of said state to take and certify acknowledgments in said state, and, further, that I am acquainted with his handwriting and that I believe that the signature to the certificate of acknowledgment is genuine.

In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the court this .... day of ...., 20...

(3) If the acknowledgment is taken without the United States and by a notary public or a judge or clerk of a court of record of the country or the clerk of the town where the acknowledgment is taken, the certificate shall be authenticated by a certificate under the great seal of state of the country, affixed by the custodian of such seal, or by a certificate of a diplomatic, consular or commercial officer of the United States accredited to that country, certifying as to the official character of such officer. The officer authenticating an acknowledgment shall endorse thereon or attach thereto a certificate in substantially the form prescribed in subsection (2) of this section.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 9; 1971, P.A. 387, S. 2.)

**Sec. 1-37. Acknowledgment in compliance with law of other jurisdiction.** Notwithstanding any provision in this chapter, the acknowledgment of any instrument without this state in compliance with the manner and form prescribed by the laws of the place of its execution, if in a state, a territory or insular possession of the United States, or in the District of Columbia, verified by the official seal of the officer before whom it is acknowledged, and authenticated in the manner provided by subsection (2) of section 1-36, shall have the same effect as an acknowledgment in the manner and form prescribed by the laws of this state for instruments executed within the state.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 10.)

**Sec. 1-38.** Acknowledgment of person in armed forces. In addition to the acknowledgment of instruments in the manner and form and as otherwise authorized by this chapter, persons serving in or with the armed forces of the United States or their dependents, wherever located, may acknowledge the same before any commissioned officer in active service of the armed forces of the United States with the rank of second lieutenant or higher in the Army, Air Force or Marine Corps, or ensign or higher in the Navy or Coast Guard. The instrument shall not be rendered invalid by the failure to state therein the place of execution or acknowledgment. No authentication of the officer's certificate of acknowledgment shall be required but the officer taking the acknowledgment shall endorse thereon or attach thereto a certificate substantially in the following form:

On this the .... day of ...., 20.., before me, ...., the undersigned officer, personally appeared .... (Serial No.) (if any) ...., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be (serving in or with the armed forces of the United States) (a dependent of ...., (Serial No.) (if any) ...., a person serving in or with the armed forces of the United States) and to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that .... he .... executed the same for the purposes therein contained. And the undersigned does further certify that he is at the date of this certificate a commissioned officer of the rank stated below and is in the active service of the armed forces of the United States.

....

Signature of the Officer

••••

Rank and Serial No. of Officer and Command to which attached.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 11.)

**Sec. 1-39. Prior acknowledgments unaffected.** No acknowledgment taken prior to October 1, 1961, shall be affected by anything contained in this chapter.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 12.)

**Sec. 1-40. Interpretation of chapter.** This chapter shall be so interpreted as to make uniform the laws of those states which enact it.

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 13.)

**Sec. 1-41. Short title: Uniform Acknowledgment Act.** This chapter may be cited as the "Uniform Acknowledgment Act".

(1961, P.A. 65, S. 14.)

#### **CHAPTER 8**

#### UNIFORM RECOGNITION OF ACKNOWLEDGMENTS ACT

Sec. 1-57. Definitions. Authorized officers. For the purposes of this chapter, "notarial acts" means acts which the laws and regulations of this state authorize notaries public of this state to perform, including the administering of oaths and affirmations, taking proof of execution and acknowledgments of instruments, and attesting documents. Notarial acts may be performed outside this state for use in this state with the same effect as if performed by a notary public of this state by the following persons authorized pursuant to the laws and regulations of other governments in addition to any other person authorized by the laws and regulations of this state: (1) A notary public authorized to perform notarial acts in the place in which the act is performed; (2) a judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of any court of record in the place in which the notarial act is performed; (3) an officer of the foreign service of the United States, a consular agent, or any other person authorized by regulation of the United States Department of State to perform notarial acts in the place in which the act is performed; (4) a commissioned officer in active service with the armed forces of the United States and any other person authorized by regulation of the armed forces to perform notarial acts if the notarial act is performed for one of the following or his dependents: A merchant seaman of the United States, a member of the armed forces of the United States, or any other person serving with or accompanying the armed forces of the United States; or (5) any other person authorized to perform notarial acts in the place in which the act is performed.

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 1.)

**Sec. 1-58.** Proof of authority to perform notarial act. (a) If the notarial act is performed by any of the persons described in subdivisions (1) to (4), inclusive, of section 1-57, other than a person authorized to perform notarial acts by the laws or regulations of a foreign country, the signature, rank or title and serial number, if any, of the person are sufficient proof of the authority of a holder of that rank or title to perform the act. Further proof of his authority is not required.

(b) If the notarial act is performed by a person authorized by the laws or regulations of a foreign country to perform the act, there is sufficient proof of the authority of that person to act if: (1) A foreign service officer of the United States resident in the country in which the act is performed or a diplomatic or consular officer of the foreign country resident in the United States certifies that a person holding that office is authorized to perform the act; or (2) the official seal of the person performing the notarial act is affixed to the document; or (3) the title and indication of authority to perform notarial acts of the person appears either in a digest of foreign law or in a

list customarily used as a source of such information.

(c) If the notarial act is performed by a person other than one described in subsections (a) and (b) of this section, there is sufficient proof of the authority of that person to act if the clerk of a court of record in the place in which the notarial act is performed certifies to the official character of that person and to his authority to perform the notarial act.

(d) The signature and title of the person performing the act are prima facie evidence that he is a person with the designated title and that the signature is genuine.

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 2; P.A. 05-288, S. 2.)

**Sec. 1-59. Certification by person taking acknowledgment.** The person taking an acknowledgment shall certify that: (1) The person acknowledging appeared before him and acknowledged he executed the instrument; and (2) the person acknowledging was known to the person taking the acknowledgment or that the person taking the acknowledgment had satisfactory evidence that the person acknowledging was the person described in and who executed the instrument.

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 3.)

**Sec. 1-60. Form of certificate.** The form of a certificate of acknowledgment used by a person whose authority is recognized under section 1-57 shall be accepted in this state if: (1) The certificate is in a form prescribed by the laws or regulations of this state; (2) the certificate is in a form prescribed by the laws or regulations applicable in the place in which the acknowledgment is taken; or (3) the certificate contains the words "acknowledged before me", or their substantial equivalent.

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 4.)

**Sec. 1-61. "Acknowledged before me" defined.** The words "acknowledged before me" mean: (1) That the person acknowledging appeared before the person taking the acknowledgment; (2) that he acknowledged he executed the instrument; (3) that, in the case of: (A) A natural person, he executed the instrument for the purposes therein stated, (B) a corporation, the officer or agent acknowledged he held the position or title set forth in the instrument and certificate, he signed the instrument on behalf of the corporation by proper authority, and the instrument was the act of the corporation for the purpose therein stated, (C) a partnership, the partner or agent acknowledged he signed the instrument on behalf of the partnership for the purposes therein stated, (D) a person acknowledging as principal by an attorney in fact, he executed the instrument by proper authority as the act of the purposes therein stated and (E) a person acknowledging as a public officer, trustee, administrator, guardian, or other representative, he signed the instrument by proper authority and he executed the instrument in the capacity and for the purposes therein stated; and (4) that the person taking the acknowledgment either knew or had satisfactory evidence that the person acknowledging was the person named in the instrument or certificate.

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 5.)

**Sec. 1-62. Statutory short forms of acknowledgment.** The forms of acknowledgment set forth in this section may be used and are sufficient for their respective purposes under any law of this state. The forms shall be known as "Statutory Short Forms of Acknowledgment" and may be referred to by that name. The authorization of the forms in this section does not preclude the use of other forms.

(1) For an individual acting in his own right:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name of person acknowledged).

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any)

(2) For a corporation:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name of officer or agent, title of officer or agent) of (name of corporation acknowledging) a (state or place of incorporation) corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any)

(3) For a partnership:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name of acknowledging partner or agent), partner (or agent) on behalf of (name of partnership), a partnership.

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any) (4) For an individual acting as principal by an attorney in fact:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name of attorney in fact) as attorney in fact on behalf of (name of principal).

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any)

(5) By any public officer, trustee, or personal representative:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name and title of position).

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any)

(6) For a limited liability company:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name and capacity of acknowledging member or manager) on behalf of (name of limited liability company) a (member managed or manager managed) (state of organization) limited liability company, on behalf of the company.

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any) (7) For a registered limited liability partnership:

State of .... County of ....

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (date) by (name of acknowledging partner), partner (or agent) on behalf of (name of registered limited liability partnership) a (state or place of filing of certificate of registered limited liability partnership) registered limited liability partnership, on behalf of the registered limited liability partnership.

(Signature of person taking acknowledgment) (Title or rank) (Serial number, if any)

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 6; P.A. 04-132, S. 3.)

**Sec. 1-63. Prior acts unaffected. Method additional.** A notarial act performed prior to October 1, 1969, is not affected by this chapter. This chapter provides an additional method of proving notarial acts. Nothing in this chapter diminishes or invalidates the recognition accorded to notarial acts by other laws or regulations of this state

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 7.)

**Sec. 1-64. Uniform interpretation.** This chapter shall be so interpreted as to make uniform the laws of those states which enact it.

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 8.)

**Sec. 1-65. Short title: Uniform Recognition of Acknowledgments Act.** This chapter may be cited as the "Uniform Recognition of Acknowledgments Act".

(1969, P.A. 270, S. 9.)

\* \* \*

**Sec. 3-94a. Notaries public. Definitions.** The following terms, when used in sections 3-94a to 3-95, inclusive, shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise requires:

(1) "Acknowledgment" means a notarial act in which a notary public certifies that a signatory, whose identity is personally known to the notary public or proven on the basis of satisfactory evidence, has admitted, in the notary public's presence, to having voluntarily signed a document for its stated purpose.

(2) "Copy certification" means a notarial act in which a notary public: (A) Is presented with an original document, (B) copies or supervises the copying of such document using a photographic or electronic copying process, (C) compares the original document presented to the copy, and (D) certifies that the copy is an accurate and complete reproduction of the original document presented, except that a notary public may not complete a copy certification if the original

document presented is: (i) A vital record, as defined in section 7-36, (ii) a document that is required to be recorded by an agent or employee of the state or any political subdivision thereof, or (iii) issued by a federal agency and federal law prohibits the copying of such document.

(3) "Jurat" means a notarial act in which a notary public certifies that a signatory, whose identity is personally known to the notary public or proven on the basis of satisfactory evidence, has made, in the notary public's presence, a voluntary signature and taken an oath or affirmation vouching for the truthfulness of the signed document.

(4) "Notarial act" or "notarization" means any act that a notary public is empowered to perform under the general statutes and includes taking an acknowledgment, administering an oath or affirmation, witnessing or attesting a signature and completing a copy certification.

(5) "Notarial certificate" or "certificate" means the part of, or attachment to, a notarized document to be completed and signed by the notary public.

(6) "Notary public" or "notary" means any person appointed by the Secretary of the State to perform notarial acts.

(7) "Oath" or "affirmation" means a notarial act or part thereof in which a notary public certifies that a person has made a vow in the presence of the notary public on penalty of perjury. In the case of an oath, the vow shall include reference to a Supreme Being unless an affirmation is administered as provided by section 1-23.

(8) "Official misconduct" means (A) a notary public's performance of an act prohibited by the general statutes or failure to perform an act mandated by the general statutes, or (B) a notary public's performance of a notarial act in a manner found to be negligent, illegal or against the public interest.

(9) "Personal knowledge of identity" means familiarity with an individual resulting from interaction with that individual over a period of time sufficient to eliminate any reasonable doubt that the individual has the identity claimed.

(10) "Satisfactory evidence of identity" means identification of an individual based on (A) at least two current documents, one issued by a federal or state government and containing the individual's signature and either a photograph or physical description, and the other by an institution, business entity or state government or the federal government and containing at least the individual's signature, or (B) the oath or affirmation of a credible person who is personally known to the notary public and who personally knows the individual.

(11) "Secretary" means the Secretary of the State.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 1; P.A. 91-110, S. 1, 9; P.A. 12-29, S. 1.)

Sec. 3-94b. Appointment and qualifications of notary. Application fee. Certificate of appointment. (a) Except as provided in subsection (c) of this section, the Secretary of the State may appoint as a notary public any qualified person who submits an application in accordance with this section.

(b) In order to qualify for appointment as a notary public, a person shall:

(1) Be eighteen years of age or older at the time of application;

(2) (A) Be a resident of the state of Connecticut at the time of application and appointment, or (B) have one's principal place of business in the state at the time of application and appointment;

(3) Pass a written examination approved or administered by the Secretary;

(4) Submit an application, on a form prescribed and provided by the Secretary, which the applicant shall complete in the applicant's handwriting without misstatement or omission of fact. The application shall be accompanied by (A) a nonrefundable application fee of one hundred twenty dollars, and (B) the recommendation of an individual who has personally known the applicant for at least one year and is not legally related to the applicant.

(c) The Secretary may deny an application based on:

(1) The applicant's conviction of a felony or a crime involving dishonesty or moral turpitude;

(2) Revocation, suspension or restriction of a notary public appointment or professional license issued to the applicant by this state or any other state; or

(3) The applicant's official misconduct, whether or not any disciplinary action has resulted.

(d) Upon approval of an application for appointment as a notary public, the Secretary shall cause a certificate of appointment bearing a facsimile of the Secretary's signature and countersigned by the Secretary's executive assistant or an employee designated by the Secretary to be issued to such appointee.

(e) A notary public may obtain a replacement certificate of appointment by filing a written request with the Secretary, accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of five dollars.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 2; P.A. 95-76, S. 1; June Sp. Sess. P.A. 09-3, S. 142.)

**Sec. 3-94c. Term of office of notary. Recording of certificate and oath.** (a) A person appointed as a notary public by the Secretary of the State may exercise the functions of the office of notary public at any place within the state beginning on the date of such person's appointment and ending five years later on the last day of the month of appointment, unless (1) such appointment as a notary is suspended or terminated by the Secretary before the end of such term, (2) the notary resigns such appointment, or (3) the notary ceases to either be a resident of the state or have one's principal place of business in the state.

(b) The Secretary may, pursuant to regulations adopted in accordance with the provisions of chapter 54, extend or reduce, by not more than one year, the term of any person serving as a notary public on October 1, 1990, who seeks reappointment after such date, in order for the new term for each such notary to begin on the effective date of the notary's reappointment.

(c) Within thirty days after receiving a certificate of appointment from the Secretary, a notary

public shall record, with the town clerk of the municipality in the state in which the notary resides, or, if the notary is not a resident of the state, with the town clerk of the municipality in the state in which the notary's principal place of business is located, such certificate and such notary's oath of office taken and subscribed to by the notary before some proper authority. Any notary public who is a resident of the state and whose principal place of business is in a municipality within the state other than the municipality in which the notary resides, may also record the notary's certificate of appointment and oath of office with the town clerk of such other municipality. Town clerks or assistant town clerks may certify to the authority and official acts of any notary public whose certificate of appointment and oath of office have been recorded in the books in their charge. The failure of a notary public to so record such certificate of appointment as a notary public.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 3; P.A. 95-76, S. 2.)

**Sec. 3-94d. Reappointment of notary.** A notary public may apply for reappointment on a form prescribed and provided by the Secretary, accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee of sixty dollars, and shall otherwise comply with all requirements for being appointed and serving as a notary public. Not later than ninety days before the expiration of the term of a notary public, the Secretary shall send the notary a notice of the expiration and a reappointment application form.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 4.)

**Sec. 3-94e. Appointment of certain state police officers as notaries.** (a) The Secretary of the State may appoint as notaries public, in accordance with the provisions of sections 3-94a to 3-95, inclusive, any number of state police majors, captains, lieutenants and sergeants. The Secretary shall not charge any such person an application fee.

(b) A notary public appointed under this section shall exercise his authority as a notary public only in the administration of oaths and affirmations and the taking of acknowledgments as pertain to official police matters. In such cases the seal of the state police shall be the notarial seal and such notary public shall not charge a fee for such notary's services as a notary public.

(c) Upon terminating employment with the state police, a notary public appointed under this section shall immediately resign as a notary public, in writing. Such resignation shall be effective on the date of such termination of employment.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 5; P.A. 91-110, S. 2, 9.)

**Sec. 3-94f. Prohibitions re lawful transactions.** A notary public shall not unreasonably refuse to perform notarial acts in lawful transactions for any requesting person who tenders payment of the statutory fee.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 6; P.A. 91-110, S. 5, 9.)

**Sec. 3-94g. Disqualification of notary.** A notary public is disqualified from performing a notarial act if the notary is a signatory of the document that is to be notarized.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 7; P.A. 91-110, S. 3, 9.)

**Sec. 3-94h. Prohibited acts.** A notary public shall not (1) perform any official action with intent to deceive or defraud or (2) use the notary's title or seal in an endorsement or promotional statement for any product, service, contest or other offering.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 8; P.A. 91-110, S. 4, 9.)

Sec. 3-94i. Notary's signature. In completing a notarial act, a notary public shall sign on the notarial certificate only the notary's own name, as it appears on the notary's certificate of appointment.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 9.)

**Sec. 3-94j. Official notarial seal.** (a) A notary public, except a state police major, captain, lieutenant or sergeant appointed as a notary public pursuant to section 3-94e, may keep and use an official notarial seal. Such seal shall not be used by any other person or surrendered to any employer upon termination of the notary's employment.

(b) A notary shall immediately destroy the notary's notarial seal upon resigning as a notary or upon the revocation, lapse or expiration of such person's appointment as a notary.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 10.)

**Sec. 3-94k. Notarial certificate. Notarial seal. Stamp.** If a notary public utilizes a notarial seal, the notary shall, near the notary's official signature on a notarial certificate, affix an impression of the notarial seal, which shall include: (1) The notary's name exactly as it appears on the notary's certificate of appointment, (2) the words "Notary Public" and "Connecticut" and (3) the words "My commission expires (commission expiration date)", provided the notary may elect to have the words in subdivision (3) appear on a stamp instead of such seal. If the notary does not utilize a notarial seal or stamp, the words "Notary Public" and "My commission expires (commission expired legibly by the notary near the notary's official signature on a notarial certificate.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 11.)

**Sec. 3-94***l***. Liability.** (a) A notary public shall be liable to any person for all damages proximately caused to that person by the notary's official misconduct.

(b) An employer of a notary shall be liable to any person for any damages proximately caused to that person by the notary's official misconduct related to the employer's business, if the employer directed, encouraged, consented to, ratified or approved the notary's official misconduct, either in the particular transaction or, implicitly, by previous actions in at least one similar transaction.

(c) An employer of a notary shall be liable to the notary for all damages recovered from the

notary as a result of official misconduct that was coerced by threat of the employer, if the threat, such as a threat of demotion or dismissal, was made in reference to a particular notarial act, or, implicitly, by the employer's previous actions in at least one similar transaction. The employer shall also be liable to the notary for damages caused to the notary by demotion, dismissal or other action resulting from the notary's refusal to commit official misconduct.

### (P.A. 90-154, S. 12.)

**Sec. 3-94m. Warning, reprimand, revocation, suspension, resignation.** (a) The Secretary may deliver a written, official warning and reprimand to a notary, or may revoke or suspend a notary's appointment, as a result of such notary's official misconduct or on any ground for which an application for appointment as a notary may be denied, or for a violation of any provision of the general statutes.

(b) The termination or lapse of an appointment as a notary, regardless of reason, shall not stop or preclude any investigation into such notary's conduct by the Secretary, who may pursue any such investigation to a conclusion and issue any finding.

(c) Within thirty days after the resignation, revocation or suspension of a notary's certificate of appointment, the Secretary shall notify all town clerks within the state, in such manner as the Secretary shall determine, of such resignation, revocation or suspension. The town clerk of any municipality in which such notary's certificate of appointment or replacement certificate of appointment has been recorded shall note the resignation, revocation or suspension, and the effective date thereof, on the original record of such certificate or replacement certificate.

### (P.A. 90-154, S. 13.)

**Sec. 3-94n. Change of address of notary. Fee.** Within thirty days after a change of residence address, a notary public who is a resident of the state shall file with the Secretary a signed, written notice which shall include both the old and new addresses. Within thirty days after a change of address of one's principal place of business, a notary public who is not a resident of the state shall file with the Secretary a signed, written notice which shall include both the old and new addresses. Such notice shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of fifteen dollars. If the change of address is to a different municipality, the notary shall, within thirty days after issuance of a replacement certificate of appointment by the Secretary, record such certificate with the town clerk of the municipality in which the new address is located. The failure of a notary to so record such replacement certificate shall not invalidate any notarial act performed by the notary.

### (P.A. 90-154, S. 14; P.A. 95-76, S. 3; June Sp. Sess. P.A. 09-3, S. 143.)

**Sec. 3-940. Change of name of notary. Fees.** (a) Within thirty days after a change in the name of a notary public, the notary shall file a notice of the change with the Secretary, on a form prescribed and provided by the Secretary. The notice shall state the notary's old and new names and the effective date of the new name, include such proof of the change of name as the Secretary shall require, be signed by the notary and be accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of fifteen dollars. The notary shall, within thirty days after the issuance of a replacement certificate of appointment by the Secretary, record such certificate with the town clerk of the municipality wherein the notary recorded the notary's original certificate of appointment and oath of office.

The failure of a notary to so record such replacement certificate shall not invalidate any notarial act performed by the notary. Any town clerk who is required by statute to make a record of the certificate of appointment and oath of office of a notary shall record the replacement certificate of appointment containing the change of name of the notary upon payment of a fee of fifteen dollars by such notary to the town clerk.

(b) Beginning on the date of issuance of such replacement certificate of appointment by the Secretary, the notary public shall (1) sign the notary's new name on all notarial certificates, and (2) if the notary uses a notarial seal, use only a notarial seal that contains the notary's new name.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 15; June Sp. Sess. P.A. 09-3, S. 144.)

**Sec. 3-94p. Procedure for resignation of notary.** (a) A notary public may resign as a notary by filing with the Secretary a signed, written notice of resignation which shall indicate the effective date of such resignation.

(b) A notary public who ceases to either reside within the state or have one's principal place of business in the state shall immediately resign as a notary in the manner provided in subsection (a) of this section.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 16; P.A. 95-76, S. 4.)

**Sec. 3-94q. Death of notary.** As soon as possible after the death of a notary public, the notary's personal representative shall destroy the notary's official notarial seal, if any, and file a signed, written notice, with the Secretary of the State, indicating that the notary public has died and the date of death.

(P.A. 90-154, S. 17.)

**Sec. 3-95. Fees of notary.** The fee for any act performed by a notary public in accordance with the provisions of the general statutes shall not exceed five dollars plus an additional thirty-five cents for each mile of travel.

```
(1949 Rev., S. 3638; P.A. 79-284; P.A. 90-154, S. 18; P.A. 00-138, S. 1, 2.)
```

\* \* \*

**Sec. 7-62a. Illegal issuance of certificates.** No person other than a registrar of vital statistics or the commissioner shall issue or cause to be issued any certificate or document which is, or purports to be, an original or certified copy of a certificate of birth, death, fetal death or marriage. No person other than such registrar or the commissioner shall certify or purport to certify as a true copy any certificate of birth, death, fetal death or marriage. No person other than a registrar of vital statistics or the commissioner shall issue or cause to be issued an uncertified copy of a certificate of birth, death, fetal death or marriage. No person other than a registrar of vital statistics or the commissioner shall issue or cause to be issued an uncertified copy of a certificate of birth, death, fetal death or marriage, in accordance with the provisions of subsection (a) of section 7-51a. Any person who violates this section shall be fined not more than one hundred fifty dollars or imprisoned not more than one year, or both.

(1963, P.A. 285; P.A. 77-614, S. 323, 610; P.A. 93-381, S. 9, 39; P.A. 95-257, S. 12, 21, 58; P.A. 01-163, S. 21.)

\* \* \*

**Sec. 45a-251. (Formerly Sec. 45-161). Making and execution of wills. Wills executed outside the state.** A will or codicil shall not be valid to pass any property unless it is in writing, subscribed by the testator and attested by two witnesses, each of them subscribing in the testator's presence; but any will executed according to the laws of the state or country where it was executed may be admitted to probate in this state and shall be effectual to pass any property of the testator situated in this state.

(1949 Rev., S. 6951; 1971, P.A. 240; P.A. 80-476, S. 232.)

\* \* \*

**Sec. 51-85.** Authority and powers of commissioners of the superior court. Each attorney-atlaw admitted to practice within the state, while in good standing, shall be a commissioner of the superior court and, in such capacity, may, within the state, sign writs and subpoenas, take recognizances, administer oaths and take depositions and acknowledgments of deeds. Each such attorney may also issue subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and subpoenas duces tecum in administrative proceedings. If, in any administrative proceeding, any person disobeys such subpoena or, having appeared in obedience thereto, refuses to answer any proper and pertinent question or refuses to produce any books, papers or documents pursuant thereto, application may be made to the superior court or any judge thereof for an order compelling obedience.

(1949 Rev., S. 7648; 1977, P.A. 77-386, S. 1; 1978, P.A. 78-280, S. 80.)

# Appendix C

# ADDITIONAL STATUTORY REFERENCES

# General Statutes of Connecticut

Sec. 7-33a; 7-34a	Issuance of certificates of authority of justices of peace, notaries and Superior Court commissioners; Fees.
	(1971, P.A. 387, S. 1; P.A. 78-280, S. 2, 127; P.A. 81-34, S. 1, 9.); (1963, P.A. 528, S. 1, 2; 1971, P.A. 286; 1972, P.A. 150; P.A. 74-56; P.A. 75-154; P.A. 76-271, S. 1; P.A. 77-478, S. 4, 5; 77-614, S. 139, 587, 610; P.A. 78-303, S. 85, 136; P.A. 81-34, S. 8, 9; P.A. 82-323, S. 1; P.A. 85-60; 85-257; 85-385, S. 1; P.A. 89-217, S. 1, 6; P.A. 90-175, S. 1, 2; P.A. 93-389, S. 2, 7; P.A. 00-92, S. 2; 00-146, S. 1, 8; June Sp. Sess. P.A. 00-1, S. 25, 46; P.A. 01-79, S. 2; P.A. 05-228, S. 5; 05-288, S. 37; June Sp. Sess. P.A. 05-3, S. 113; P.A. 06-163, S. 1; P.A. 07-133, S. 1; 07-217, S. 13; 07-252, S. 54; P.A. 09-229, S. 27.)
Sec. 33-239	Trustees, officers or members may take acknowledgments.
	(1949 Rev., S. 5347.)
Sec. 47-5a	Persons before whom acknowledgment may be made.
	(P.A. 75-309, S. 4; P.A. 76-436, S. 646, 681; P.A. 79-602, S. 2.)
Sec. 52-148a	Taking of depositions. When court order necessary.
	(P.A. 76-273, S. 1.)
Sec. 52-148b	Notice of taking of deposition.
	(P.A. 76-273, S. 2.)
Sec. 52-148c	Before whom depositions may be taken.
	(P.A. 76-273, S. 3.)
Sec. 52-148d	Requirements for taking of depositions. Party subject to taking of deposition
	(P.A. 76-273, S. 4; P.A. 82-160, S. 70.)
Sec. 52-148e	Issuance of subpoena for taking of deposition. Deposition to be used in federal court or court of other state or foreign country
	(P.A. 76-273, S. 5; P.A. 77-604, S. 32, 84; P.A. 06-152, S. 4.)
Sec. 52-155	Depositions before commissioner appointed by other jurisdiction. Compulsory process for witnesses
	(1949 Rev., S. 7878; 1959, P.A. 615, S. 13; P.A. 82-160, S. 74.)
Sec. 52-262	Fees for signing process, administering oaths, acknowledgments.

	(1949 Rev., S. 3635; 1959, P.A. 473, S. 1; 1967, P.A. 628, S. 4; P.A. 82-160, S. 134.)	
Sec. 53-368	Falsely certifying as to administration of oath.	
	(1949 Rev., S. 8706.)	
Sec. 53a-156	Perjury: Class D felony.	
	(1969, P.A. 828, S. 158; P.A. 10-33, S. 9; 10-180, S. 7.)	
Sec. 53a-157a; 53a-157b	False statement in the first degree: Class D felony. (Formerly Sec. 53a-157); False statement in the second degree: Class A misdemeanor.	
	(P.A. 93-392, S. 7.); (1969, P.A. 828, S. 159; P.A. 93-392, S. 6.)	

# Appendix D

### Forms

Under section 3-94n or 3-94o of the Connecticut General Statutes notaries are required to file his/her "change of name" or "change of address" with the Secretary of the State's office. Therefore, the following forms are provided for the convenience of the Notary Public.

The appropriate form should be photocopied from the following pages, completed and mailed to the Secretary of the State's office, with the fee of \$15.00 for processing. A replacement *Certificate of Appointment* will be issued and sent to the notary. If you have any additional questions, please refer to Sec. **3.5** of the manual.

Secretary of the State **§15.00** Attn: Notary Public Division PO Box 150470 Hartford, CT 06115-0470 (860) 509-6100

### **Filing Fee**

Do not tear-out pages from this booklet. Forms should be photocopied, so that they are available for future use.

# **Notary Public Change of Name Form**

This form will also update a change of address in connection with this name change. <u>DO NOT COMPLETE A SEPARATE</u> <u>FORM FOR AN ADDRESS CHANGE</u>. **Instructions**: Complete this form legibly in ink and send the signed original to the above address, along with a nonrefundable statutory fee of **\$15.00**. Make check payable to "Secretary of the State". <u>Do not send</u> <u>cash</u>. All questions (if applicable) must be answered completely before your request will be processed.

Do you need a free copy of the Notary Public Manual?  $\Box$  Yes  $\Box$  No

Daytime telephone number:			
(Area code & number)			
(Name that appears on your current notary public certificate)			
Date commission expires:			
Aarriage Divorce Detition to change name			
<b>street address</b> ) A PO Box may be given only if mail delivery is not available to <u>at be used</u> .			
Yes 🗖 No			
Current residence address:			
ad provide their principal place of business in the State of Connecticut for rincipal business address <b>must include business name.</b> This information			
Current business name & address:			

NOTE: Before submitting this form, please have your signature notarized in front of a notary public, or other person empowered by law to administer oaths.

Signature of Notary Public (new name) Secretary of the State Notary Public Unit PO Box 150470 Hartford CT 06115-0470 (860) 509-6100

### Filing Fee \$15.00

Do not tear-out pages from this booklet. Forms should be photocopied, so that they are available for future use.

# **Notary Public Change of Address Form**

This form is for a change of address only. If you have a change of name, you will need to complete the change of name form.

**Instructions**: Complete this form legibly in ink and send the signed original to the above address along with a nonrefundable statutory fee of **\$15.00**. Make check payable to "Secretary of the State". <u>Do not send cash</u>. All questions (if applicable) must be answered completely before your request will be processed.

Do you need a free copy of the Notary Public Manual?  $\Box$  Yes  $\Box$  No

Date:	Daytime telep!	hone number:			
		(Area code & number)			
Name of notary public:					
	(Name that appears on y	your current notary public certificate)			
Notary account number:	Dat	Date commission expires:			
Previous residence address:		Current residence address			
(Must include street address A business address <u>will not be us</u>		only if mail delivery is not available to resident addr	ess.		
		le their principal place of business in the State of <b>de business name</b> ). This information is required by	non-		
Previous business name & addre	255:	Current business name & address:			

Signature of Notary Public Secretary of the State Attn: Notary Public Unit PO Box 150470 Hartford, CT 06115-0470 (860) 509-6100

### Filing Fee: \$5.00

Do not tear-out pages from this booklet. Forms should be photocopied, so that they are available for future use.

# **Duplicate Request Form for Notary Public Certificate of Appointment Request Form**

This form is for a duplicate certificate only. If you have a change of address, you will need to complete the change of address form.

**Instructions:** Complete this form legibly in ink, and send the signed original to the above address, along with the nonrefundable statutory fee of **\$5.00**. Make check payable to "Secretary of the State". <u>Do not send cash</u>. All questions must be answered completely before your request will be processed.

Do you need a free copy of the Notary Public Manual? Yes No

Date:	Daytime telephone number:

(Area code & number)

٦	r		
	L		
1	L	-	

(Name that appears on your current notary public certificate)

request a duplicate copy of my notary public certificate of appointment.

Notary account number:\_\_\_\_\_ Date your

Date your commission expires: \_\_\_\_\_

You must provide your address of record:

Is this a new address?  $\Box$  No  $\Box$  Yes If yes, then you need to complete a change of address form.

Signature of Notary

## Appendix E

### Public Act No. 13-127

## AN ACT CONCERNING THE UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF LAW BY NOTARIES PUBLIC.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Assembly convened:

Section 1. (NEW) (*Effective October 1, 2013*) (a) A notary public shall not offer or provide legal advice to any person in immigration matters or represent any person in immigration proceedings unless such notary public (1) has been admitted as an attorney under the provisions of section 51-80 of the general statutes, or (2) is authorized pursuant to 8 CFR 292.2 to practice immigration law or represent persons in immigration proceedings.

(b) A notary public shall not assume, use or advertise the title of notario or notario publico, unless such notary public (1) has been admitted as an attorney under the provisions of section 51-80 of the general statutes, or (2) indicates in any advertisement or otherwise provides written notice that such notary public is not licensed as an attorney in this state.

(c) Any notary public who violates any provision of this section shall have committed a violation of subsection (a) of section 51-88 of the general statutes and be subject to the penalties set forth in subsection (b) of section 51-88 of the general statutes.

# Index

Subject, Page No. A Acknowledgments, 5-10 Address Change, 4 Address Change, Form, 48 Affidavits. 11 Affirmations, 10 Application for Appointment, 2 Application for Renewal, 3-4 Appointment, Certificate and Recording, 3 Authentication, 17-18 B Bonds, 18 С Credible Witness, 8-9 Certificate, Changes and Replacement, 4 Copy Certification, 11-12 D Deceased Notary Public, 5 Disgualification, 15 Duties and Responsibilities, 5-16 Notarial Acts, 5-16 Recording Appointment Certificate, 3 **Disciplinary Action**, 18 Е Examination, 2 F Fees for Notarial Acts, 18 Foreign Language, 17 Forms, 6-7; 9-13; 46-49 Ι Identification, 8 Influence, 15 Insurance, 18 J Journals, 16 Jurat, 11 L Lost or Stolen Seals and Stamp, 15 Μ Minors, 9 Ν Name Change, 4 Name Change, Form, 47

"Notario Publico", 15, 16, 50 Р Prohibited Acts, 15,16 0 Oaths, 3, 10 R Recording Appointment, 3 Renewal of Appointment, 3-4 Replacement Certificate, 4 Resignation, 5, 15 S Seals, 14 Secretary of the State, 17-19 Signature by Mark, 9 Signature of Notary, 14 Special Notes, 20 Stamps, 14 Subpoenas, 11 Т Translations, 17 W Wills, 16 Wills, Living, 16